C Greenhead College

Be exceptional

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION
Minutes of Corporation meeting

Monday 10 February 2025, 4.30pm
Held in Hirst Lecture Theatre, Greenhead College
Alison Jones; Chris Kneale (from 16.54); Darinder Shokar; Ed
Wynn; Heather Roebuck (via Teams); Jeanette Palmer; John
Governors present: Holroyd; Liz Bowen (from 16.50); Mark Howells; Mo Bunter;
Richard Armstrong (Chair); Sally Watts; Stuart Irving (via Teams,
from 16.34); Stuart Taberner; Viswa Edara
Baljit Singh (Associate Governor); Michaela Boryslawskyj
(Associate Governor, left 17.30); Mohammed Usman (via Teams,
from 16.45); James Reevell (VP); Usman Anwar (VP); Lauren
Metcalfe (DoFF); Sarah Walters (DoEO); Sharon Roper (Clerk)

Apologies: Connie Laing; Frankie Robinson; Samim Mitha

In attendance

Attendance: 83% attendance

Pre-meeting Presentation on Risk Management by Paul Goddard,
Govs’ Devt Scrutton Bland.
session (4pm):

Welcome, RAR welcomed members, especially the new associate
apologies members
Apologies received as above.

1. Declarations RAR declared an interest on behalf of the two Staff
Governors who had not joined the meeting at this point,
regarding item 4 teachers’ pay update.

3. Minutes 3.1 Corporation Meeting 9/12/24 minutes, previously
9/12/24 circulated, approved by Corporation, signed off by RAR,
Clerk to file. Clerk

3.2 Matters arising- Action Log, previously circulated:

1. (1/7/24, Min 4.5.3.8 & 4.5.3.18, Action 1) Potential
remodel to Hirst building. RAR asked for an update.

MBR said an efficiency model for classroom use has been
used and some oversubscribed subjects will use part of
Wednesday afternoon, therefore CLT have decided that a

Page 1 of 11




remodel of Hirst will not go ahead. The Hirst remodel was
previously approved by the Corporation Board and CLT
want to use the money that was approved to remodel other
areas of the college which will have a greater impact across
the curriculum areas with better value for money.

RAR said this will be kept under review by the Board.

2. (14/10/24, Action 3) Volunteers to become Q&S Chair.
RAR proposed that this action should be closed, he is
currently acting as interim Q&S Chair.

3. (14/10/24, Min 4.3.1, Action 5) Power Bl and ALPS
training will take place in the Governors Development
Session on 31/3/25. This item is proposed to close.

4. (9/12/24, Min 4.1.4, Action 7) GC is seeking to remove
the planning cap on student numbers.

RAR asked for an update, the council should have
responded by 19/1/25, KNO will be asked to chase the
council for a response.

5. (9/12/24, Min 4.1.5, Action 8) A sentence will be added
into the strategic priorities to capture investment in IT. This
item is proposed to close.

6. (9/12/24, Min 11, Action 20) BSI has agreed to take on
the Careers & Skills Lead Governor role.

7.(9/12/24, Min 9, Action 18) Governor volunteers for either
an academic or support department link visit. There are two
unfilled link visits, RAR asked volunteers to speak to the
Clerk and said that new governors can be buddied up with
experienced governors to do the visits together.

Board members approved the following actions for closure:
2-3-5-8-9-13-14-15-20-21

SWA

4. Ofsted
Inspection Update

MBR gave a verbal update on the Ofsted Inspection that
took place 4" to 7t" February 2025.

Result: Outstanding
Skills needs: Strong contribution

- GC received notification of the Ofsted visit a week in
advance.

- The notice period gave MMI and TRO (skills nominees)
time to contact the skills stakeholders to advise them of the
inspection and schedule time for them to speak to the
inspectors.

The inspectors changed the schedule for stakeholder
contacts when they arrived at GC.

- Otherwise, the Ofsted inspection followed a similar pattern
to the inspection in 2022.

- The skills element is covered in two sentences in the
Ofsted Report, but inspectors asked about skills in every
meeting and every interaction with staff and students.

- The feedback given by a college that was inspected one
week before GC showed a lack of uniformity between their
Ofsted inspection and the inspection at GC.

Page 2 of 11




- At the feedback meeting at the end of day one, inspectors
said that the skills result was likely to be reasonable.

The following day MBR referred the inspectors to the
Inspection Framework paragraph 294 which said that
colleges ‘may’ be involved with the LSIP for WYCA, GC
was not invited to take part, and that colleges which are
predominantly academic have to demonstrate a focus of
preparing young people for their next step with wider
employability skills.

Following this feedback the inspectors shifted their
approach. The senior HMI thanked MBR for pointing this
out.

- The reason GC achieved a ‘strong contribution’ skills
result was because of the curriculum staff who have worked
on this for a long time.

- One of GC’s contacts at the council triangulated and
consolidated what GC had said together with every
stakeholder that the inspectors spoke to.

- MBR praised all the college staff who were phenomenal,
and she said the inspection was rigorous and GC was
thoroughly tested.

- UAN said that the Safeguarding meeting was very
detailed and took 1.5 hours although only scheduled for 45
minutes. All the meetings were longer than scheduled.

- The Single Central Record was scrutinised in great depth.
- 600 parents and 400 students completed the surveys for
Ofsted and these were very complimentary. Survey
responses included improving accommodation and social
space — this is something that CLT are working on.

- There were no recommendations from the inspection.

- The inspection team think that GC is one of only three
sixth form colleges in the country that has achieved
outstanding across the board and strong for skills.

- The result can be verbally shared, but it cannot be
promoted until the official report is published.

- RAR said that during interactions with staff, the inspectors
followed up the conversations and asked for evidence to
prove the impact of what they had been told.

- During the week students stopped inspectors to offer to
show them their folders. The inspectors have never seen
this elsewhere.

- One of the inspectors’ initial criticism was that GC does
not prepare students for apprenticeships. During a campus
tour the Lead Governor spoke to two students on an ad hoc
basis, one was mentoring the other and both said they
wanted an apprenticeship, had attended an apprenticeship
fair at GC that day, apprenticeships careers advice and
guidance had been given, and one had secured an
accountancy apprenticeship.

- During the inspection week Music students gave a recital
and the Head of Brass at the Royal Northern attended and
gave feedback and coaching which demonstrated the
wraparound skills support that students receive.

Page 3 of 11




- Feedback about the safeguarding officer was that she is
passionate, caring, knowledgeable and has external
contacts to ensure wraparound support for young people.

- EWY, AJO and RAR represented the Corporation Board
and were interviewed by Ofsted. AJO said it went well, and
the inspector remarked on the positive things she had seen
at GC and how fantastic staff were.

MBR said the feedback she received about governors was
that governors are knowledgeable, experienced in
supporting CLT, with a wide range of skills and continually
challenge to maintain high standards.

EWY said it was an interesting opportunity to meet with
Ofsted but thought some of the questioning was designed
to trip governors up.

- EWY said the Ofsted result is well deserved and
congratulated everyone.

- EWY said that having to educate Ofsted about the skills
element and the contrasting experience of our inspection to
another college shows a lack of uniformity of standard.
EWY asked if there is an opportunity to feedback to Ofsted,
and does the college want to do this.

MBR has already given feedback about the skills element.
STR said he received a call from an Ofsted inspector about
the skills agenda in relation to MFL and he found it
disjointed and vague.

MBR said that a new Ofsted framework will be launched in
September 2025 and JRL will be the Ofsted nominee, MBR
felt that the Ofsted outcome is secured, and with the
framework changing she doesn’t feel it is appropriate to
challenge aspects of the inspection.

JRL will represent GC in the national consultation of the
framework changes.

- Ofsted indicated it would be six years before their next
inspection at GC, MBR feels that it will probably be sooner.
- RAR asked the staff governors for feedback about the
inspection.

CKN’s department had a deep dive but he wasn’t directly
involved on this occasion. There was continuity because
the same Ofsted inspector visited his department in 2022.
EBQO’s department had a deep dive in which she was
directly involved, she found it a positive experience, the
inspector was with her for two days. She felt the whole
process was a GC team effort which was reflected in the
feedback she received. The students were impressive
during the inspection, EBO teaches EHCP and high needs
learners who spoke positively about their experiences at
GC.

EBO thanked CLT and her colleagues for the support she
received during the inspection.

- MBR asked the student governor about the Ofsted visit -
VED did not have any directly interaction with the
inspection.

Page 4 of 11




- RAR asked that GCSA feedback the Board’s thanks to all
students for their impeccable behaviour and their
contribution to the result.

- RAR will send a message of congratulation to all GC staff.

RAR

4. Teacher Pay
Update

LME summarise the Pay Award Report, previously
circulated.

1. The position for the Teacher and Support Staff Pay
Award is 3.5% increase for 7 months from September to
March and 5.5% increase for 4 months April to July 2025.
The government believe colleges can afford 3.5% for the
initial period and additional funding will arrive in April to
facilitate the 5.5% increase.

If academised, funding to facilitate 5.5% increase for 11
months would have been automatically available.

2. The college is proposing that the pay award be made
equitable for its staff, so support staff and teachers are paid
5.5% from September 2024, in line with academies.

3. The cost implications to GC are:

-Teacher pay award — September 24—July 25,£429,297
-Support staff pay award — September 24—July, £159,579
-Expected funding from government is £195,695, which
subsidises the impact of the pay awards,

-Total cost to College is £393,180 (Budget £458,689).

This is well within the budget set last year.

4. The proposed pay award ensures everyone on GC’s
payroll is over the national minimum wage.

5. The recommendation is to back date the pay award to
September 2024 and process it in the February payroll as
backdated pay to avoid any negative pension implications.
SFCA confirmed to LME that this will be the most accurate
way to process the pay award.

6. There is a small element of Risk if the pay award is
approved by the Corporation Board; payroll will start on
11/2/25 and definite confirmation of the funding amount will
be received on 13/2/25. MBR confirmed she will accept this
risk.

7. A small buffer will remain, and this will help subsidise the
deficit budget.

8. MBR said that GC did not want to breach national pay
negotiations, and an alternative option of a bonus payment
was considered but it wouldn’t be pensionable, and this
would cause a gap in staff pensions.

9. EWY asked if the amounts quoted include pension
contributions — they do.

10. EWY asked about the implications of acting against
SFCA'’s advice to stick to the original pay offer — LME said a
risk is that staff will expect this in future if the same situation
happens again so communication to staff must be explicit.
MBR said that the government is expected to make
equitable pay awards for 16-19 providers in future.

Page 5 of 11




11. RAR said subject to approval by the Corporation Board
he will send an email to all staff on 11/2/25 explaining that
everyone will get a payrise of 5.5% in line with Academy
colleagues and will use agreed wording recognising that the
college cannot commit to this in the future if a similar event
was to happen.

MBR asked for two separate emails to be sent, one
congratulating staff on the Ofsted result and one explaining
the pay award. The pay award is not a result of the Ofsted
result, discussions about the pay award started before the
Ofsted visit was announced.

Sally Wats (SWS) asked that the wording is agreed to
ensure that it’s clear that it is not setting a precedent.

12. HRO asked how many staff are on minimum wage and
has there been a discussion about changing them onto the
national living wage — LME said approximately 15 staff are
on minimum wage, RAR recalled this was discussed
several years ago and asked for this to be brought to
Corporation with the staff diversity report on 19/5/25.

HRO said this is an additional 41p per hour and it would
send a positive message that GC wants to be a real living
wage employer.

RAR asked for information about the financial implications
of adopting the national real living wage because it looks
like GC will still be in a deficit position next academic year.
HRO asked for the living wage to be added into a future
agenda.

Corporation Boad members approved the teacher and
support staff pay rise of 5.5% from September 2024 in line
with schools and academies, and this will be paid in
February.

(The vote was carried without staff and student governor
votes).

RAR

JRA

LME

Clerk

5. Finance update

October, November and December 2024 financial accounts
and narrative, previously circulated, for noting.

LME said the accounts are tracking in line with the
increased deficit budget.

The end of year position is predicted to be £291,000 deficit,
which includes the 5.5% teacher staff pay award. It includes
4% support staff pay award instead of 5.5% because these
are December’s accounts, and the additional funding is also
not included.

At the end of December a surplus was reported, the swing
to deficit is mainly due to the timing of examination costs,
utility bills, and invigilation.

A Bursary Audit has resulted in a cost of £95,000 which
needs adding back into the bursary account which will be
facilitated by college funds.

Page 6 of 11




Cash flow is higher than predicted, this is a timing issue
with capital items that should have hit in Summer but have
pushed into Autumns figures.

There has been a greater capital spend mainly due to IT,
this was difficult to budget for because there was not an IT
Asset Management Plan, this will be more accurately
budgeted going forward.

JHO said GC is in a different financial environment to the
last few years when there were large surpluses. Deficits are
forecast for the next three years.

JHO said that GC has a strong balance sheet with £4.5
million held in the bank which will reduce to £3.5 million at
the end of this year. JHO said a sensible approach is
needed around cash management.

EWY thanked LME for the new style management account
document.

6. Estates Report
& Risk Registers

Estates Report and Risk Registers, previously circulated,
for noting.

1. EWY asked about the situation with the caterers who
have asked for a financial contribution from GC because
they are not meeting their budgets.

SWA has added this new risk into the Risk Register.

SWA has taken legal advice, and the catering contract is
watertight from GC’s viewpoint.

OCS said that their Board may close the balance through
the service provision.

There are provisions within the contract if they do not meet
service level agreements.

GC has refused to make the requested contribution to
OCs.

OCS can request a subsidy for the days that GC was
closed due to heavy snowfall.

OCS are currently contacting their legal department.

EWY asked if they had made GC aware of issues prior to
asking for a financial contribution - they started soft
conversations in November and SWA gave them
suggestions of what can be improved.

The consultants who helped with the catering tender have
completed an audit and the results have been shared with
OCS.

LME said that price increases have been agreed and there
are an additional 80 Bursary students and free college
meals have been increased to £6.

RAR asked why OCS haven'’t surveyed students and staff
to ask what they want.

2. DSH asked about the significant cost of remedial works
to Rostron’s roof which is estimated at £150,000 — SWA
said the issue is the construction between the ceiling and

Page 7 of 11




roof which is holding condensation. Drilling holes into the
area seems to have worked, this issue is being monitored,
and further investigations are ongoing to see if damage has
been caused to the joists.

There was no water ingress during the recent heavy
snowfall.

3. There is a new risk on the register covering staff
industrial action, because of a pause in industrial action and
the pay award this will move to monitor or archive.

EWY said the Risk registers will be reviewed at the next
A&R meeting 17/3/25.

RAR said that GC’s internal auditors delivered a Risk
Management Governor Development Session before the
Corporation meeting 10/2/25.

This was recorded and will be circulated to governors

together with the training slides. Clerk
Useful information from the Risk Management session will
be taken forward at Strategy Day. SWA
7. Staff Governor | 1. CKN said recent strike action has created tension in
feedback some departments.
Staff are professional and there are concerns about getting
through the curriculum.
Two teaching unions have been inconsistent which has
been difficult.
RAR said that the Corporation Board needs assurance of
how students will be supported to catch up. JRL
2. There are ongoing Hirst temperature issues especially on
the top floor which can be cold, CKN can see that SWA and
Premises are working to resolve the issue.
SWA said this has been escalated back to the contractors.
3. EBO said it is a concentrated part of the academic year
and is very busy.
8. Student VED confirmed that he and FRO are coming to the end of
Governor their terms as student governors and elections are
feedback underway for GCSA members.
RAR asked if there has been much interest from the A1
students — there are 20 candidates.
9. External External Governor Review Action Plan, previously
Governor Review | circulated.
Action plan

The Clerk summarised that from 55 actions in the report, 34
actions are complete, and 21 open actions will be closed by
the end of the academic year.

Outstanding actions related to strategic reporting to the
Board have been delayed due to the recent Ofsted visit and
will come to Corporation 31/3/25.

Page 8 of 11




EWY (A&R Chair) has worked on the actions following the
observation of the A&R committee, there is one action
around finance training which the external auditors will
facilitate.

Outstanding actions include succession planning, governor
appointment policy, role descriptions, governance
contribution and reviewing the governance code.

RAR said the Corporation Board will receive a termly
update on the External Governance Review Action Plan.

EWY

10. Governance
approvals

Corporation board members were asked to approve:

e Q&S Committee recommendation of Richard
Armstrong as Interim Chair of Q&S committee

RAR said a permanent Chair of Q&S will be sought in due
course.

e Frankie Robinson recommended as F&E committee
member

EWY asked if the Board should be approving FRO’s
replacement to F&E committee due to the upcoming
changeover of student governors.

There is a F&E meeting scheduled before FRO’s term of
office ends.

RAR said the new student governors will be asked which
committees interest them; they are unable to join Q&S
committee due to specific details discussed in the
meetings.

e Baljit Singh recommended as S&G committee
member

¢ Michaela Boryslawskyj and Sally Watts
recommended as A&R committee members

Corporation Board members approved the above
recommendations.

11. Committee
draft minutes

1. Joint Finance & Estates/Audit & Risk committee
meeting 11/11/24

2. Search & Governance Committee 25/11/24

3. Capital Development Committee 27/11/24

4. Quality & Standards (SAR Validation) 3/12/24

5. Quality & Standards Committee 27/1/25

There were no questions or comments about the minutes.
Corporation board members noted the draft committee
minutes.

Page 9 of 11




12. Policies
reviewed via
Commiittees

Policies reviewed via Committees, all previously circulated
(for noting):

1. Young Carers Policy (Q&S)
2. Bursary Policy (F&E)

There were no questions or comments about the policies,
Corporation members noted the policies.

16. Any other
business

- MBR asked Board Members to consider changing
Corporation and committee meetings to termly instead of
half termly from academic year 2025/26 onwards.

- MBR and some other CLT members have worked to this
schedule in their previous roles at other organisations.

- The main driver for this proposal is to give CLT more time
to prepare reports for meetings and to work creatively and
with innovation.

MBR used an example that LME currently prepares
detailed financial documents for half termly F&E meetings
which is very time-consuming.

- RAR asked about the workload and regulatory items that
are dealt with in the current October and December
Corporation meetings and offered an alternative solution of
four Corporation meetings per year in October, December,
March/April and July.

- AJO said that when fewer meetings are held the bigger
the agenda becomes. She shared from her experience that
the length of meetings might increase and asked if
afternoon meetings might be an option. She observed that
the amount of meetings currently held at GC can lead to
increased operational discussion.

- The Clerk raised her concern that the meetings might
become too long.

- RAR proposed two meetings in term one, the first one
focussing on results and setting KPIs and the second
meeting concentrating on the regulatory documentation that
is submitted to DfE by the end of December, then termly
meetings for the remainder of the academic year.

- EWY asked about delegating more of the workload to
committees — there are certain items that are the Board
responsibility that DfE does not allow to be delegated.

- RAR said that F&E committee scrutinise the management
accounts before they come to the board, and the draft
budget needs to go to F&E well in advance of the July
Corporation meeting so F&E can make a recommendation.
SWA suggested one F&E meeting later in term one and
three F&E meetings between January and July to look at
budget setting and premises spend approvals.

- AJO asked that CLT should confirm their cycle of decision
making and reporting and for the meetings to be built
around this.

MBR

Page 10 of 11




- STR (a new governor) observed that he finds the content
of the meetings operational with duplication of the content
covered in meetings.

RAR said that some items from committees are shared at
Corporation to give all Board Members the opportunity to
input and raise any issues, and agendas will be tightened to
focus on strategic priorities.

- RAR asked CLT to produce a meeting schedule that
works for them in academic year 2025/26 and to consider
committee meetings that support the Board and regulatory

approvals. MBR
17. Confidentiality | The Ofsted result cannot be shared electronically until it is
officially published.
Staff pay award until it is communicated to all staff.
18. Dates Next Corporation meeting Mon 31/3/25, 4.30pm: Govs note

Govs’ development session 4pm,

Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk) on 20/3/2025

Approved & signed by Richard Armstrong, Chair on 31/3/25

Page 11 of 11




